

# **Governance Handbook**

# ADELANTO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT March 14, 2023

## **BOARD OF TRUSTEES**

La Shawn Love-French, President (Area 2)
Stephanie Webster, Clerk (Area 5)
Christine Turner, Board Representative (Area 1)
Christina Bentz, Trustee (Area 4)
Miguel Soto Jr., Trustee (Area 3)

**Superintendent**Michael Krause

#### **Executive Cabinet**

Dr. Tasha Doizan, Assistant Superintendent of Academic Services Carlos Moran, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources Vacant, Assistant Superintendent of Business Services

# **Table of Contents**

GOVERNANCE	3
Unity of Purpose	3
Our Governance Team's Unity of Purpose	4
Mission	4
Vision	4
Core Values	4
PREAMBLE	6
Responsible Effective Governance	8
Governance Roles and Responsibilities	8
Limits of Board Member Authority	8
OUR NORMS	
Accountability	9
Competence and Judiciousness	9
Ethics and Integrity	10
Solidarity	11
How the Board Communicates	11
Support, Respect, and Consideration	11
During Board Meetings	11
OUR PROTOCOLS	
Gatherings and Communications	12
Agenda Preparation and Distribution	12
Board Meeting Preparation and Attendance	12
Planning Special Board Meetings	14
The Role of the Board President	14
Requests for Information	14
New Ideas	14
Visiting Schools	14
Handling Complaints or Concerns from the Public and Staff	15
Media relations	16
Official Board Correspondance	16
Vacancies on the Board of Trustees	16
Orientation for School Board Candidates	
Welcoming New Members to the Board	
Annual Organizational Meeting	17
BOARD DEVELOPMENT	
Conference	18
OUR COMPACT	
Agreement and Signatures	19

#### **GOVERNANCE**

"Each of us must come to care about everyone else's children. We must recognize that the welfare of our children and grandchildren is ultimately linked to the welfare of all other people's children. After all, when one of our children needs life-saving surgery, someone else's child will perform it. If one of our children is threatened or harmed by violence, someone else's child will be responsible for the violent act. The good life for our own children can be secured only if a good life is also secured for all other people's children."

- Lillian Katz (International Leader in Early Childhood Education)

#### **Unity of Purpose**

Unity of purpose is a commitment to transcend individual differences to focus upon the greater good.

### **Our Governance Team's Unity of Purpose**

Our unity of purpose is to accomplish our mission, fulfill our goals, and realize our vision as we operate under best practices as set forth in the policy and in the California School Boards Association's *Masters in Governance* program.

- Our shared purpose is to have the best learning environment for all students.
- We want to build trust and move the District forward.
- We want to become an effective team.
- We want to understand our collective responsibilities.
- We want to be a team with a common focus so that we are not a distraction to the District or community but a catalyst for the focused efforts of employees.
- We want the community to be able to see evidence of this focused direction.
- We want to be partners with the staff in positive change.
- We want to perpetuate a legacy of positive culture as people come and go.

# Mission

Our mission is to prepare every student to be successful in high school, in college, in career, and in the 21st-century global community.

# **Vision**

Our vision is to be the High Desert's premier learning establishment where dreams are awakened, academic achievement soars, and integrity leads the way to future success.

# **Core Values**

#### Home, School, & Community Partnerships

- The Board believes that our students, parents, and members of the community are our most valued resource. Every effort will be made by District and school staff to assist and interact with our students, parents, and community in a "family friendly" environment.
- The Board believes that all members of our school community should treat one another with consideration, integrity, and honesty. We honor each person's individuality, celebrate our community's diversity, and support school cultures of mutual acceptance and respect.
- 3. The Board values collaborative, productive, and meaningful relationships with all stakeholders to include parents/legal guardians, students, teachers, staff, administrators, Board members, state and local elected officials, and members of the community at large.

#### **Emphasis on Student Success**

- 4. The Board believes that we have a duty to foster the complete growth and development of each student's personal and academic potential. We, therefore, are committed to:
  - Individualized opportunities that respond to the uniqueness of our learners
  - Rigorous academic standards that ask for the best that each student can offer
  - Providing learning experiences that will bring our students eventual success in a global economy
- 5. The Board believes in upholding high standards and expectations for each students. We work to engage students thru excellent teaching in a positive, caring, and challenging

learning environment that prepares students for future success, by supporting their capacity for using technology, thinking independently, solving problems, and learning throughout life.

- 6. The Board values equity and inclusion as a personal and professional responsibility and will strive to create inclusive learning environments in which every child is able to achieve her/his highest potential.
- 7. The Board believes that all members of the school community share responsibility for the learning of all students. Teaching and learning take place in collaborative school and classroom cultures that are based on trust, respect, and mutual accountability. Collaboration and effective communication with parents and community members is foundational to our culture.

#### Safe, Respectful, & Well-Maintained Schools & Facilities

- The Board believes the District has a responsibility to provide safe, secure, and wellmaintained schools and facilities that are accessible to our students, parents, staff, and community members.
- 9. The Board believes that our schools must be warm, welcoming, and promote a positive school climate. We, therefore, are committed to High behavioral and academic expectations, Fair and reasonable consequences, and Patient and respectful support and encouragement for all students.
- The Board values and promotes practices that ensure a safe and orderly learning and work environment.

#### **Highly Quality Staff**

- 11. The Board believes in recruiting, training, and retaining highly qualified employees who maintain high moral and ethical character and consistently exhibit a positive example, exemplary attitude, genuine caring, and great enthusiasm.
- 12. The Board believes in holding high expectations for each staff member. Staff is responsible for continuing their professional learning, and embracing research-based educational and business practices that enable continuous growth and improvement.
- 13. The Board believes that excellence requires hard work, patience, and persistence. We value a school community where all members never give up on themselves or each other, where obstacles are seen as opportunities, and where all members continually strive to achieve more than was thought possible.

#### **Fiscal Responsibility**

- 14. The Board believes every fiscal decision the District makes will be weighed against ALL of our core values.
- 15. The Board believes in ensuring the long-term fiscal health of the District by exercising fiscal responsibility, maintaining operational efficiencies, and implementing careful budget development and long-range planning.
- 16. The Board believes in allocating appropriate resources necessary to support successful teaching and learning, and we use our resources responsibly for the maximum benefit of students.

Our commitment to these beliefs guides all that we do, bonds the entire District together in a shared mission, and transcends both time and individuals. People may come and go; time may pass; but our core values remain the same.

#### PREAMBLE

Representative government requires that public officeholders be competent, independent, impartial, and accountable. Therefore, the Board of Trustees of the Adelanto Elementary School District (AESD) adopts this Governance Handbook, which is a companion to its policy manual, to promote and maintain best practices and the highest standards of professional conduct. Its norms and protocols flow from board bylaws, embody the principles promulgated by the California School Boards Association (CSBA), and are based on the collective experiences of school boards across the state. This ready resource formalizes the conventions used by the governance team in the conduct of its day-to-day business.

For newly elected or appointed board members, especially those who have not yet completed CSBA's *Masters in Governance* program, this handbook is particularly valuable as it sets forth a series of do's and don'ts to ensure that all board members are ready to undertake confidently the work of the District.

This handbook is adapted in part from CSBA's guide and other training materials. It is the result of the collaborative effort of the Board of Trustees and the Superintendent.

#### Responsible, Effective Governance

The AESD school board is entrusted with much. It has a solemn duty to uphold the constitutions of California and the United States, protect the public interest in schools, and provide high-quality education to all students.

#### **Governance Role and Responsibilities**

The board carries out these responsibilities in each of the following domains:

- Student Learning and Achievement
- Finance
- Facilities
- Human Resources
- Policy
- Judicial Review
- Collective Bargaining
- Community Relations and Advocacy

#### **Limits of Board Member Authority**

Board members are state officers who act under the auspices of state law when conducting official business. The exercise of the board's authority is predicated upon the delegation of authority from the legislature and must be justified under standards of reasonableness to avoid a judicial presumption of arbitrary or capricious action.

According to Board Bylaw 9200, the Board of Trustees has broad but clearly limited powers with respect to its operations. Please see the appendix for the full text.

- The board is the unit of authority over the District.
- The exercise of the board's authority is restricted by law and may only take place in a legally constituted meeting.
- Board members have no individual authority.
- Individually, board members may not commit the District to any policy, act, or expenditure.
- Board members hold the education of students above any partisan principle, group interest, or personal interest.
- Board members who visit schools have no more authority than any other citizen.
- Unless agreed to by the board, individual members do not exercise any administrative responsibility with respect to the schools or command the services of any school employee.
- A board member whose child is attending a District school is aware of his/her role as a
  board member when interacting with District employees about his/her child. Because
  his/her position as a board member may inhibit the performance of school personnel,
  the board member informs the superintendent or designee before volunteering in
  his/her child's classroom.

- The superintendent or designee provides a copy of the state's open meeting laws (Ralph M. Brown Act) to each board member and to anyone who is elected or appointed to the board but has not yet assumed office.
- Board members and persons elected to the board who have not yet assumed office are responsible for complying with the requirements of the Brown Act.

#### **OUR NORMS**

#### In the Day-to-Day

#### 1. Accountability

a. We take collective responsibility for the success of our governance team.

#### 2. Competence and Judiciousness

- a. We are honest stewards of students' education and focus on what is best for them.
- b. We set clear directions for the District.
- c. We recognize that each member is integral to the governance team.
- d. We operate within our respective roles and responsibilities.
- e. We collaborate constructively for the success of the team.
- f. We do not micromanage the District.
- g. We demonstrate through our conduct the differences between good intentions and good government.
- h. We do not supervise individual board members; we are publicly elected or appointed officials, not employees.
- i. We participate in professional development and commit the time and energy necessary to be informed and effective leaders.
- j. We model dignified behavior for our students, staff, and community.
- k. We maintain poise and decorum in the face of controversy, difficulty, or complexity.
- I. We are conversant in District matters and with trends in education.
- m. We live out the principles of good Boardsmanship as promulgated by the California School Boards Association in its *Masters in Governance* program.
- n. We are mindful that every word spoken and every action taken contribute to the District's reputation, either for good or for bad.
- o. We devote our time and energy to important business issues, not to politics, pettiness, or ungraciousness.
- p. Board members, either individually or corporately, never suggest or recommend any employee or member of the public for a position in the District. Board members can encourage members of the public to apply for a position.
- q. Absent board direction, we do not observe or participate in the interviews of prospective employees.
- r. We do not withhold or obstruct the flow of important information that belongs with the governance team.
- s. We wear official badges when at the District office, when visiting schools, and when attending school or District functions.

#### 3. Ethics and Integrity

- a. We advance the effectiveness of our governance team through the individual and collective demonstration of integrity, consistency, responsibility, accountability, fairness, and transparency.
- b. Board members do not unilaterally assign work to employees except as provided for in the executive assistant to the superintendent's job description.
- c. We do not solicit or accept offers of help from District employees, except as allowed by law, for political campaigns, personal business interests, or other personal purposes.
- d. We do not use our position on the board to further our personal business ventures, nor do we publicize them at any District or school function or on any District properties. We do not distribute non-District business cards or other promotional materials to employees, nor do we exploit interactions with the public to promote personal business interests.
- e. We do not proffer or consider information from anonymous sources.
- f. We do nothing to blindside fellow governance team members.
- g. We do not disclose confidential information acquired during a closed session to a person not entitled to receive such information, unless a majority of the board has authorized its disclosure. Confidential information means a communication made in a closed session that is specifically related to the basis for the Board to meet lawfully in closed session (Government Code <u>54963</u>).
- h. We are willing to admit mistakes readily and do not seek to evade responsibility.
- i. We reserve judgment on every matter until all known facts are communicated to the full board.
- j. We do not participate in gossip or rumor-mongering.
- k. We do not form alliances within the team to carry out divergent goals or secret agendas.
- I. We do not speak ill of current or former governance team members.
- m. The superintendent is required to report to the board president egregious violations by board members of board bylaws, policies, or the agreements made herein. If the board president is the offending party, the superintendent is required to make his report to the board clerk. The board president or clerk, as the case may be, then reviews with the offending party the established practices to be observed and offers guidance and support.
- n. We use our titles only when conducting official District business, for informational purposes, or as an indication of background and expertise. We are careful not to exceed or appear to exceed our authority or use our position to influence others unduly.

#### 4. Solidarity

- a. When working together, we look beyond our own individual contributions to the governance team and appreciate our collective achievements.
- b. If necessary, we discuss with an individual team member, privately and respectfully, any personal concern or issue we have with him or her for the good of the team. We do not burden the team with such matters.
- c. We are neither arbitrary nor capricious in our conduct, decision-making, or deliberations.
- d. We do not engage in or permit any personal attacks against fellow board members or the superintendent.

#### 5. How the Board Communicates

- a. We develop and maintain open, honest communication with each other.
- b. We do not criticize the reasoning, motives, or philosophies of fellow team members, whether in public or private settings.
- c. When we disagree, we do so in a reasonable and respectful manner and do not take differences of opinion personally.
- d. We speak with one voice in order to maintain the trust of our community.
- e. We make no unilateral, extemporaneous remarks regarding the job performance of the superintendent or any other employee, recognizing that employee performance reviews are conducted solely in accordance with established policy.

#### 6. Support, Respect, and Consideration

- a. We support each other and operate from positions of goodwill, good faith, and good motivations.
- b. We consistently treat fellow team members with respect, courtesy, and consideration.
- c. We demonstrate sensitivity and caring for fellow team members.
- d. We give one another the benefit of the doubt.
- e. We look to the strengths of our colleagues and do not participate in frivolous fault-finding missions.
- f. We are considerate of one another's schedules.

#### **During Board Meetings**

- a. Board meetings are held in public to conduct the business of the District in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act; they are not to be regarded as town hall meetings.
- b. Board meetings are for gathering information, making decisions, and taking action.
- c. We are on time and prepared for meetings.
- d. We behave and dress in a manner worthy of a professional business meeting.
- e. We endeavor to ensure that all members of the team have the same information.
- f. We do not bring hidden agendas to board meetings.
- g. We do not use the privacy afforded in closed-session meetings as a cloak for unprofessional conduct or wrongdoing.

- h. Board members remain behind the dais or the board table, except for personal or medical necessity, and are attentive throughout board meetings in order to govern effectively and participate fully.
- i. We work cooperatively with the board chair to promote common courtesy and decorum. We do not text while in closed session.
- j. We observe the philosophy in *Rosenberg's Rules of Order, Revised 2011*, "Debate on policy is healthy, debate on personalities is not" and uphold the practice, "The chair has the right to cut off discussion that is too personal, is too loud, or is too crude." <sup>1</sup>
- k. We speak only after first having been recognized by the chair and do not interrupt others.
- l. Board discussion shall be addressed to fellow board members, the superintendent, members of the executive cabinet, or scheduled speakers, and not to the audience.
- m. Board members accept the contributions and full participation of fellow board members and do not monopolize discussions.
- n. We do not use coarse or profane language.
- o. We have no side conversations.
- p. Use of the Internet—except to view the Board of Trustees online meeting agenda, board policies, and agendized presentations—, e-mail, texting, and other electronic messaging on any device or computer is prohibited by board members during board meetings. This includes reading, sending, or receiving data and messages unless it's an emergency.
- q. We do not make or answer personal telephone calls when on the dais or in closed session. Personal cellular telephones are to be silenced before meetings are called to order.
- r. We use wisely the time set aside in board meetings for board members' reports and announcements. We do not grandstand, evaluate employees, advocate action be taken on behalf of employees, or reargue a failed motion or position.

#### **OUR PROTOCOLS**

#### **Gatherings and Communications**

- a. We comply with the Brown Act and do not form unlawful meetings, regardless of the circumstances.
- b. A board meeting exists whenever a majority of board members gather at the same time and place to hear, discuss, or deliberate upon any item within the subject matter jurisdiction of the board or District (Government Code<u>54952.2</u>).
- c. A majority of the board does not, outside of an authorized meeting, use a series of communications of any kind, directly or through intermediaries, to discuss, deliberate, or take action on any item that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the board. However, an employee or District official may engage in separate conversations with board members in order to answer questions or provide information regarding an item within the subject matter jurisdiction of the board, as long as that employee or District

- official does not communicate the comments or position of any board members to other board members (Government Code <u>54952.2</u>).
- d. Attendance by a majority of board members at events delineated below is not subject to the Brown Act, provided that a majority of the board members do not discuss specific District business among themselves other than as part of the scheduled program (Government Code 54952.2).
  - 1. A conference or similar public gathering open to the public that involves a discussion of issues of general interest to the public or to school board members
  - 2. An open, publicized meeting organized by a person or organization other than the District to address a topic of local community concern
  - 3. An open and noticed meeting of another body of the District
  - 4. An open and noticed meeting of a legislative body of another local agency
  - 5. A purely social or ceremonial occasion
  - 6. An open and noticed meeting of a standing committee of the board, provided that the board members who are not members of the standing committee attend only as observers
- e. The superintendent will send individual emails, and text messages to the trustees with the same information to avoid accidentally having a serial meeting.

#### **Agenda Preparation and Distribution**

- a. Agendas are to be set only with the approval of the board president, or clerk in the president's absence and the superintendent.
- b. Agendas and all supporting materials for regular board meetings are made available online to the board in draft form at least five days prior to the board meeting. Board members may request hard copies of the online information.
- c. Time set aside for the board president and the superintendent to plan meeting agendas is restricted to relevant matters and is not used to circumvent the normal procedure for the board to give direction to the superintendent.
- d. To place an item on the agenda, complete the form, send an email or send a text using the format of the form, and submit to the board president and superintendent by 4:00 p.m. the Friday before agenda prep meeting.

#### **Board Meeting Preparation and Attendance**

- a. Consistent, punctual attendance at board meetings is expected. If a board member is unable to attend or will be late, the superintendent's office is to be notified as soon as possible.
- b. Board members direct all questions regarding agendized matters to the superintendent.
- c. Board members may improve through independent learning their knowledge about general matters related to public education.
- d. Board members do not undertake independent inquiries or investigations that could create conflicts of interest or compromise the integrity of the board or District.
- e. Staff members who receive inquiries from board members may only redirect them to the superintendent.

#### **Planning Special Board Meetings**

- a. Special meetings of the board may be called at any time by the presiding officer or by a majority of the board members. However, a special meeting shall not be called regarding the salary, salary schedule, or other compensation of the superintendent, assistant superintendent, or other management employee as described in Government Code 3511.1.
- b. In the interest of full attendance at special board meetings, priority is given by the board president to the proposed date and time which accommodates attendance by all board members. If that is not possible within the required timeframe, then priority is given to the date and time, which accommodates attendance by four board members. If only a quorum can attend in the required timeframe, then the meeting is set for the soonest date and time.

#### The Role of the Board President

- a. The board president provides leadership and administrative responsibilities but does not have greater power than other board members.
- b. The board president leads the business of the board and carries out the duties prescribed in Board Bylaw 9121.

#### **Requests for Information**

- a. Questions and requests by board members for information related to District matters or programs or to matters that may come before the board are directed to the superintendent only. Staff members who receive such inquiries from board members may only redirect them to the superintendent.
- b. Board members do not undertake independent inquiries or investigations that could create conflicts of interest or compromise the integrity of the board or District.

#### New Ideas

- a. It is recommended that a board member wishing to present a new idea to the Board of Trustees first consult with the superintendent, who is the subject matter expert.
- b. In accordance with Board Bylaw 9322, should the board member decide to pursue the idea, then he or she may prepare an agenda item or request that one be prepared for placement on a future agenda.
- c. A board member may bring up a new idea during the *Board Members' Reports and Announcements* section of a board meeting. The board member uses this brief opportunity to mention the idea and state a benefit or two about it. The board member may not argue at length the merits of the idea or grandstand. No action will be taken.

# **Visiting Schools**

a. It is desirable for board members to visit schools with the superintendent during his/her regularly scheduled visits if time permits.

- b. Should board members wish to visit schools at other times they are encouraged to contact the school principal and the superintendent ahead of time, but not required.
- c. As a professional courtesy, board members notify the superintendent of school visits.
- d. Board members are careful not to encroach on the learning environment. As such, the superintendent instructs principals and teachers not to interrupt lessons when a board member is visiting.
- e. It is recommended but not required for the superintendent, or school principal, or both to accompany board members during school visits.
- f. Board members are encouraged to attend celebratory events on campus. They do not sit in on IEP meetings, employee discipline, or parent-teacher conferences, except as related to their own children, even if invited. Board members do not sit in on collective bargaining meetings, even if invited.
- g. If a concern is seen or heard during a school visit, the board member will not address the staff member at the site. The board member will let the superintendent know to address concerns.

#### Handling Concerns or Complaints from the Public and Staff

- a. We respond to concerns or complaints in accordance with uniform procedures to ensure not only that matters are handled expeditiously but also that everyone is treated fairly and without bias.
- b. We protect the confidentiality and due process rights of students and staff members.
- c. When listening to a concern or complaint, we are neutral in our position and fully aware that we are hearing only one side of the story.
- d. We are consistent in our responses and function within our roles, conveying that individual board members have no authority to resolve matters.
- e. We use the California School Boards Association's 6 R's to ensure we listen actively to members of the public and staff and that we abide by uniform procedures.
  - 1. Receive listen to what the person has to say without preparing a response.
  - 2. **Repeat** paraphrase or ask a question to clarify for understanding. We ask the person to identify those to whom s/he has spoken about the matter prior to contacting a board member.
  - 3. **Request** ask what the person would like the board member to do with the information and/or what is seen as a solution to the problem.
  - 4. Review go over the real options available to the person to remedy the situation.
  - 5. **Redirect** put the person back into the system at the appropriate place—respecting District lines of authority and chains of command.
  - 6. **Report** maintain open lines of communication between the board and superintendent and notify the superintendent of the conversation as soon as possible:
    - > so the superintendent can verify or clarify the situation and follow through as necessary and/or appropriate
    - > so that the superintendent knows first-hand what the board member said to the community or staff member
- f. We invite the public or staff members to follow up with us about the issue.

g. Board members exercise the same level of care when responding to emails from staff and members of the community as is described for personal interactions.

#### **Media Relations**

- a. To maintain message consistency and discipline, board members and the superintendent are obligated to speak with a common voice about District issues to the staff and community.
- b. Some situations have legal or other considerations that may place restrictions on what may be told to the media or public.
- c. The superintendent or his/her designee and the board president prepare and distribute press releases.
- d. The superintendent or his/her designee, as soon as possible, will notify the board president and board members before contacting the media on behalf of the District.
- e. Media inquiries are directed to the board president and superintendent.
- f. With prior board approval, any board member may speak on behalf of the District or board of trustees.

#### **Official Board Correspondence**

- a. The superintendent conducts official correspondence for the board (Board Bylaw 9122).
- b. Official correspondence from the board is signed by the board president.

#### Vacancies on the Board of Trustees

- a. Vacancies on the Board of Trustees must be filled in accordance with state law.
- b. If a vacancy is to be filled by appointment, then barring official correspondence from the board president, all contact with prospective board members is restricted to the formal interview process in a public meeting. (reference Board Policy 9223 Filling Vacancies)

#### Orientation for School Board Candidates

- a. The Board of Trustees desires to provide board candidates with information that will enable them to understand the responsibilities and expectations of board membership.
- b. Anyone whose name has been published on the San Bernardino County Registrar of Voters' official website as a qualified candidate may request to attend the candidate orientation meeting with the superintendent to receive general information about school programs, District operations, and board responsibilities. The superintendent or designee must provide the same information to all candidates who make the request (Board Bylaw 9230).
- c. Before Election Day, the superintendent is to advertise the date and time of the candidate orientation meeting on the AESD website with at least two weeks advance notice.

#### **Welcoming New Members to the Board**

a. The board convenes an open orientation meeting to provide information to incoming board members to assist them in understanding the board's functions, policies, procedures, protocols, and agreed-upon standards of conduct.

- b. Incoming board members receive the District's policy manual, governance handbook, and other materials related to the District and board member responsibilities.
- c. Upon their election, incoming board members are provided with a copy of the Brown Act and are informed that, pursuant to Government Code 54952.1, they must conform to the Act's requirements as if they had already assumed office.
- d. The superintendent provides incoming board members with additional background and information regarding the District's vision and goals, operations, and current challenges in areas that include, but are not limited to, student achievement, curriculum, finance, facilities, policy, human resources, and collective bargaining.
- e. Incoming members are encouraged to attend board meetings and review agenda materials available to the public in order to become familiar with current issues facing the District. Incoming members also may, at District expense and with approval of the board, attend workshops and conferences relevant to their individual needs or to the needs of the board as a whole or the District.
- f. Each new board member receives a new board member orientation packet that includes informational handouts about the District and governance team operations. Please see the appendix.
- g. Board members may attend District-paid conferences only after the election results have been certified.

#### **Annual Organizational Meeting**

Each year, the Board of Trustees, also referred to as the Governing Board, shall hold an annual organizational meeting. In any year in which a regular election of district Board members is conducted, the organizational meeting shall be held within a 15-day period beginning from the date upon which a Board member elected at that election takes office. During non-election years, the meeting shall be held within the same 15-day period on the calendar. (Education Code 35143)

The day and time of the annual meeting shall be selected by the Board at its regular meeting held immediately prior to the first day of the 15-day period. On behalf of the Board, the Superintendent shall notify the County Superintendent of Schools of the day and time selected. Within 15 days prior to the date of the annual meeting, the clerk of the Board, with the assistance of the Superintendent, shall notify in writing all Board members and members-elect of the date and time selected for the meeting. (Education Code 35143)

At this meeting the Board shall:

- 1. Elect a president and a clerk from its members
- 2. Appoint the Superintendent as secretary to the Board
- 3. Authorize signatures

- 4. Approve the Board governance calendar stating the time when the Board will address important governance matters
- 5. Designate Board representatives to serve on committees or commissions of the district, other public agencies, or organizations with which the district partners or collaborates

(cf. 9140 - Board Representatives)

6. Review and/or consider resources that define and clarify the Board's governance and leadership roles and responsibilities including, but not limited to, governance standards, meeting protocols, Board rules and bylaws, and other Board development materials

#### **Election of Officers**

The Board of Trustees shall elect officers who have completed the California School Boards Association's Masters in Governance program. Board members who aspire to hold any office of clerk and president must complete CSBA's Board Presidents Workshop prior to the annual organizational meeting. At this meeting, the Board shall:

- 1. The Board will elect the Board President
- 2. The Board will elect Board Clerk
- 3. The Board will elect Board Representative
- 4. The Board will appoint the Superintendent as Secretary to the Board
- 5. The Board will approve Signatures
- 6. The Board will approve the Governance Calendar stating the time when the Board will address important governance matters

No Board member shall serve more than two consecutive years in the same office.

- The Governance Handbook will be reviewed at the first board meeting after the Re Organizational Board Meeting.
- The Board Calendar will be voted on at the first meeting in June

#### **Board Development**

Citizens elected to the Governing Board are entrusted with the responsibility of governing district schools. The Board recognizes that its members need training that helps them understand their responsibilities, stay abreast of new developments in education, and develop Boardsmanship skills. In furtherance of its objective to cultivate a team of highly qualified and effective Board members, the Board of Trustees strongly advises that each Board member complete the California School Boards Association's Masters in Governance program.

All Board members may attend conferences for the purpose of Board development. Board business shall not be discussed at conferences.

Board members shall report to the Board, orally or in writing, as soon as possible on the in-service activities they attend.

Funds for Board development shall be budgeted annually for each Board member.

The Trustees attend some of the following conferences throughout the year: CAAASA, CSBA, CABSE, NSBA, CUBE, Shell Beach (AALRR), Budget Workshops, and Governors Budget Workshop Jan/May Revise

#### **OUR COMPACT**

We have reviewed and agreed to the aforementioned governance team norms and protocols in order to support a positive and productive working relationship among the Adelanto Elementary School District Board of Trustees, staff, students, and the community. We shall renew these agreements at our annual governance workshop.

Affirmed on this 14 day of March	, 2023
La Shawn Love-French	Stephanie Webster
La Shawn Love-French, Board President	Stephanie Webster, Board Clerk
aut	Christina Bonds
Christine Turner, Board Representative	Christina Bentz, Trustee
	Michael Kunn
Miguel Soto Jr., Trustee	Michael Krause, Superintendent

# **AESD School District Policy Manual**

9000	Role Of The Board	
9005	Governance Handbook	
9010	Public Statements	
9011	Disclosure Of Confidential/Privileged Information	
9012	Board Member Electronic Communications	
9100	Organization	
9110	Terms Of Office	
9121	President	
9122	Secretary	
9123	Clerk	
9124	Attorney	
9130	Board Communities	
9140	Board Representatives	
9200	Limits Of Board Member Authority	
9220	Governing Board Elections	
9222	Resignation	
9223	Filing Vacancies	
9224	Oath Or Affirmation	
9230	Orientation	
9240	Board Development	
9250	Remuneration, Reimbursement And Other Benefits	
9250	Remuneration, Reimbursement And Other Benefits	
9260	Legal Protection	
9270	Conflict Of Interest	
9270	Conflict Of Interest	
9310	Board Policies	
9310.8	Board Member Misconduct And Public Censure	
9310.8	Board Member Misconduct And Public Censure	
9230	Meetings And Notices	
9321	Closed Session Purposes And Agendas	
9321.1	Closed Session Actions And Reports	
9322	Agenda Meeting Materials	
9323	Meeting Conduct	
9323.2	Actions By The Board	
9323.2	Actions By The Board	
9324	Meetings And Recordings	
9400	Board Self-Evaluation	
		$\overline{}$

**Relevant California State Education Codes**